Regular Meeting: March 14, 2007 - 7:30 p.m.
Location: Court Room
Second floor, Memorial Town Hall

Board Member Attendance: Gordon Stanley, Chairman; Robert Steinbruch, Vice
Chairman; David Connolly, Mayor; Joseph Fiorenzo, Twp. Comm. Rep.; Randy
Hoogerheyde; Fred Depken; Gerry Chi, Dan Hartigan. Absent: Kathy Scarpelli; Robert
Kane, Alt.

Staff Attendance: Peter Ten Kate, Boswell Engineering Representative; Joseph
Perconti, Board Attorney; Susan Schilstra, Administrative Officer/Secretary.

The following statement, in accordance with the Open Public Meeting Act,
was made by the Chairman, Gordon Stanley, “The regular March 14,
2007 Meeting of the Wyckoff Planning Board is now in session. In
accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act, notice of this meeting
appears on our Annual Schedule of Meetings. A copy of said Annual
Schedule has been posted on the bulletin board in Memorial Town Hall; a
copy has been filed with the Township Clerk, The Record, The Ridgewood
News and the North Jersey Herald and News - all newspapers having
general circulation throughout the Township of Wyckoff. At least 48 hours
prior to this meeting the Agenda thereof was similarly posted, filed and
mailed to said newspapers."

Approval of the February 14, 2007 Work Session Minutes
Approval of the February 14, 2007Regular Business Minutes

Board Member Hoogerheyde made a motion to memorialize this resolution to approve
voucher for payment. Second, Board Member Depken. Voting in favor: Mr. Chi, Mr.
Hartigan, Mr. Depken, Mr. Hoogerheyde, Committeeman Fiorenzo, Mr. Steinbruch,
Mayor Connolly, and Chairman Stanley.

e #

$ BLK 241 LOT 4 (B1A); 255 Madison Avenue. Minor site
plan/variance.

The application proposes to convert the existing single family dwelling into first and
second floor separate office space. The basement will be utilized for storage.



K87 "8T ()&

Board Member Steinbruch made a motion to memorialize this resolution for a minor site
plan/variance. Second, Board Member Depken. Voting in favor: Mr. Chi, Mr. Hartigan,
Mr. Depken, Mr. Hoogerheyde, Mr. Steinbruch, Mayor Connolly, and Chairman Stanley.
Memorialized resolutions available upon request in Room 110 at Memorial Town Hall.

, BLK 346 LOT 46 (RA-25); 470 Ackerson Avenue.
Minor subdivision. (Chi)

The application proposes to subdivide an existing 74,276 square foot lot into two (2)
lots conforming in lot size.

Board Member Chi made a motion to memorialize this resolution for a minor
subdivision. Second, Board Member Hartigan. Voting in favor: Mr. Chi, Mr. Hartigan,
Mr. Depken Mr. Hoogerheyde, Committeeman Fiorenzo, Mr. Steinbruch, Mayor
Connolly, and Chairman Stanley. Memorialized resolutions available upon request in
Room 110 at Memorial Town Hall.

, BLK 241 LOT 3 (B1A); 253 Madison Avenue. Amended
site plan. (Hoogerheyde)

The applicant proposes to construct a rear entry basement door from the exterior of the
building to access the basement for the storage of floor materials and associated
products. The basement is proposed to be utilized for storage of materials only with no
office or sales area located in the basement.

Board Member Hoogerheyde made a motion to memorialize this resolution for an
amended site plan. Second, Board Member Depken. Voting in favor: Mr. Chi, Mr.
Hartigan, Mr. Depken Mr. Hoogerheyde, Committeeman Fiorenzo, Mr. Steinbruch,
Mayor Connolly, and Chairman Stanley. Memorialized resolutions available upon
request in Room 110 at Memorial Town Hall.

Completeness review is performed on applications to verify that the Municipal Land Use
requirements are included in the application. An application can only be scheduled for
board review and a public hearing if the items required for completeness are included in
the application and the Planning Board determines the application complete.

! n
BLK 377 LOTS 1 & 18.05 (RA-25); Sicomac/Russell Avenue. Preliminary Major
Subdivision. (Hartigan)

This application proposes to create a seven (7) lot residential subdivision creating six
(6) new residential lots on two (2) existing parcels totaling 5.66 acres.



K87 "8T ()&

Mr. Robert Milanese, the principle of Barrister Home Construction and applicant, and
Mr. Russell Huntington, the applicant’s attorney, were present.

Boswell Engineering Representative Ten Kate said the applicant has provided the tree
plan as requested by the Board. A waiver is being requested for elevations and floor
layouts of the particular homes.

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked if the application is complete.
Boswell Engineering Representative Ten Kate said the application is complete.

Board Member Hartigan made a motion to deem this application complete and
schedule it for a public hearing meeting on Wednesday, April 11, 2007. Second, Board
Member Hoogerheyde. Voting in favor: Mr. Chi, Mr. Hartigan, Mr. Depken Mr.
Hoogerheyde, Committeeman Fiorenzo, Mr. Steinbruch, Mayor Connolly, and
Chairman Stanley.

BLK 236 LOT 1.01 (B1A); 652 Wyckoff Avenue. Amended site
plan. (Hoogerheyde)

The application proposes to utilize a third floor storage area for office use.

Chairman Stanley and Township Committee Representative Fiorenzo recused
themselves from discussion and removed themselves from the dais.

Mr. David Becker, the applicant’s attorney, Mr. Novak, Vice President of Lakeland Bank
and Mr. James Cutillo, the applicant’s architect, were present.

Mr. Becker stated to the Board that the applicant is requesting an amendment/
modification to its site plan approval with variances, which was memorialized by
resolution dated July 12, 1999. The requested amendment is to allow office use on the
third floor of the existing structure which is currently being used for storage only. There
will be no physical change to the site. It will remain consistent with the character of the
neighborhood. He added that there were no conditions or restrictions put on the third
floor as storage only in the resolution of approval. The applicant will address the Board
tonight with regards to the fire code and parking.

Marked as identification at this time were the following exhibits:
A-1 Architectural of the building — second floor
A-2 Architectural of the building — third floor



K87 "8T ()&

Mr. Steven Novak, Vice President and Team Leader of the Commercial Lending Group
in the Wyckoff office, was sworn. He said that currently the configuration of the second
floor will not change. The only change will be the use. The space is fully occupied by
personnel. Recent Federal Regulations require a more secure space when meeting
with clients. The Bank proposes to place a conference room on the second floor. Office
and 3 bank employees would then be moved to the third floor. No clients would access
the third floor.

Mr. Becker said that a parking variance is not being requested. He asked the client to
address the on site parking and item number 13 on the Boswell Report which deals with
the request of enclosing the dumpster.

Mr. Novak said there is sufficient parking on site. The dumpster and refuse areas were
enclosed today.

Mr. James Cutillo, 21 Mountain Avenue, Pompton Plains, NJ, was sworn. He said he is
a licensed architect in the State of New Jersey and New York and a professional
planner in New Jersey. He said that he graduated from the NJ Institute of Technology
and is now a principle of Cutillo Associates.

The Board accepted Mr. Cutillo’s credentials.

Mr. Cutillo said that he was contacted by Lakeland Bank and was asked to create more
space within the building to meet new State guidelines. The applicant recommended
use of the third floor or possibly an extension of the second floor over current first floor
roof areas. However, an addition of the roof areas would require more construction and
would change the appearance of the building. The third floor would only require internal
shifting of the existing third floor stairway. The only external change would be the
addition of one window in the front of the building. The first floor will remain the
customer area, banking floor, vault and tellers. The existing stairwell goes up to the
second floor where offices are located. In addition to the second floor is a stairwell that
goes to the third level. The third level is depicted on A-2. An important feature of the
third floor design is shifting the third floor stairway so that it will give a direct line of exit
down the hallway on the second floor which leads directly to the exit stairs to the first
floor which will satisfy the Wyckoff Fire Code. Also it will create more office space on
the third floor. Existing office space on the second floor will be made into a private
conference room which would keep customers away from work areas and confidential
files. Three office spaces in the front of the building as well as a reception area and
lunch room will remain on the second floor. The proposed third floor will contain an
existing mechanical area, a new credit area and lenders office.

Mr. Becker asked Mr. Cutillo to explain the parking analysis that he had done to see if a
parking variance was needed.

Mr. Cutillo said he reviewed the original site plan and original construction documents.



- K87 "8T ()&

The site plan listed the square footage of 4,993 divided by 200 which equals 25 parking
spaces. He reviewed the interior of the building and calculated the utilized floor area
which is 3,746 square feet. Seventeen parking spaces are required and 21 spaces are
provided.

Mr. Becker said the proposed interior alteration will not propose any new square
footage just increase usable floor area.

Board Member Hoogerheyde said that in previous testimony there was a meeting room
for customers on the second floor. He questioned why the meeting room is considered
office space and not customer service area which would be a different parking ratio.

Mr. Cutillo said customer service area is the first floor banking floor where people are
waiting in line to be serviced at the teller area. In this particular building office space
would be the vestibule, vault, and private offices where a 1 per 250 parking ratio would
be required.

Vice Chairman Steinbruch said that this parking requirement issue remains inconclusive
with regards to customer space calculations.

Board Member Depken was concerned with the Uniform Construction Code of New
Jersey (UCC) requiring any building with the use of the third story to have 2 remote
means of egress.

Mr. Cutillo said the UCC requires that the exit travel be under a certain distance.

Board Member Depken said the Rehab Code which the bank will be operating under
requires that the use of a third story should have 2 remote means of egress.

Mr. Cutillo said that his research showed that he only needs 75’ of travel distance.

Board Member Depken said this issue will be addressed at the building department
level when the applicant applies for building permits.

Board Member Chi asked if there are any three story buildings in Wyckoff that are using
the third floor.

Boswell Engineering Representative Ten Kate said that he is not aware of any building
in Wyckoff using the third floor.

Vice Chairman Steinbruch opened the meeting to the public. No one wished to speak;
a motion to close that portion of the hearing was made by Board Member Depken,
seconded by Board Member Hoogerheyde and passed.

Vice Chairman Steinbruch said that his concern is not with this application but he is
concerned with establishing third story office uses in Wyckoff. If the building is



He 8T )&+
demolished by fire a 3 story office building could be constructed on site.

Board Member Hoogerheyde said this is an old structure and there is no additional
construction being added to this structure to raise the height of the building.

Boswell Engineering Representative Ten Kate said that he would like a condition placed
on the application that since the applicant added the dumpster enclosure he would like
an as-built or record drawing of the site as it is today.

Mr. Becker said the applicant will provide an as-built drawing. He added that the
applicant is subject to the previous approval for 3 stories which is under the maximum
height of 35'.

Vice Chairman Steinbruch asked if there is any way to condition this application in the
event the building was destroyed and would need to be rebuilt that a three story office
building would not be constructed.

Board Attorney Perconti said that any future applications for a third story use would be
heard on its own merits. This application can be conditioned on the 35 feet requirement
or 2% stories which is stated in the previous resolution of approval and include this
application as an ancillary use to the bank structure as well as the historical significance
of this house.

Board Member Depken said the reason third story buildings are not allowed is because
fire department ground ladders cannot reach over two stories. And that is the reason a
second egress is required in a building like this. Aerial rescue would be needed if
available. This second egress requirement will be decided at the building permit level
of the application.

Mr. Becker said this application was previously approved in 1999. The applicant
provided testimony in 1999 that the third floor would be used for storage only. The
application was approved on that basis. This proposed application will redesign the third
floor for employee use. Customers will not be allowed on the third floor.

Board Attorney Perconti said the use will be limited to a specific bank use and it is clear
on the record. The applicant is bound by the terms of the original resolution of
approval.

After discussion Board Member Hoogerheyde made a motion to approve this
application subject to the following conditions: (a) the prior resolution will be
incorporated into this approval; (b) the third floor use will be an ancillary banking use;
(c) if there is a change in occupancy the new tenant will need to return to the Planning
Board for site plan approval. Second, Board Member Hartigan. Voting in favor: Mr.
Hartigan, Mr. Hoogerheyde, and Mayor Connolly. Voting in denial: Mr. Chi, Mr.
Depken, and Mr. Steinbruch. The application was denied.



K87 "8T ()&

Township Committee Representative Fiorenzo and Chairman Stanley returned to the

dais.
!_ll

! " BLK
497 LOTS 7, 8.01, 10 & 11.01 (RA-25); Ravine Avenue. Preliminary Major
Subdivision/variance.

The site presently contains four (4) lots. One lot, which contains an existing residential
dwelling, fronts on Grandview Avenue. The largest of the three lots, known as the
Mason family property, was previously zoned by Court Order for Affordable
Housing/Multi-family for 99 condominiums. The application proposes to subdivide the
remaining three (3) lots into nine (9) conforming lots and to construct a new single
family residence on these lots. A total of six (6) new homes are proposed by the
application.

Mr. Robert Milanese, the principle of Barrister Home Construction and applicant, Mr.
Russell Huntington, the applicant’'s attorney, Mr. Andrew Missey, the applicant’s
engineer and Mr. Peter Steck, the applicant’s planner, were present.

Marked as identification at this time were the following exhibits:

A-6 Townhouse layout for the Mason tract

A-7 Single family layout for the Mason tract

A-8 Alternate road alignment — 10 lots/open basin/realigned road

A-9 Alternate 9-lot layout with open basin

A-10 Minimum lot size inscriptions (125’ x 200’ rectangles inscribed on existing layout
A-11 Open detention basin — 9 lots, present road alignment, and adjusted lot layout
A-12 Conceptual plan with 11 lots through Red Rock Road stub

A-13 Conceptual plan of ten lots (open basin; 4 lots on south)

A-14 Aerial view of the proposed site prepared by Mr. Steck, the applicant’s planner
B-12 Letter from Mr. Stuart Lieberman to the Board dated February 13, 2007

B-13 Letter from Boswell Engineering to the Board dated February 26, 2007

B-14 Boswell McClave Report dated March 5, 2007

B-15 Kauker & Kauker report dated March 7, 2007

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked that the Board resolve an issue that was
raised in advance to this hearing. There had been a letter written to the Planning Board
on February 13, 2007 by Mr. Stuart Lieberman who is counsel for the objectors. There
has been a reply in response to that dated February 26, 2007 by Boswell Engineering.
Mr. Lieberman basically indicates that Boswell Engineering is the engineer for the

Borough of Hawthorne and also for the Planning Board for the Township of Wyckoff.
Mr. Fiorenzo stated that in your letter you indicate that it may be a relevant issue before
this Board that Boswell is the engineer for both communities. You state in your letter



/ K& "8 ( )&+

that “indeed the prospect of this application was so troubling to Hawthorne’s officials
that they requested that Mr. Boswell address the instant application and its potential
ramifications to Hawthorne.” You then site two provisions of the New Jersey
Administrative Code which appear to be raising the potential for a conflict of interest.
He asked Mr. Lieberman to explain to the Board what the basis or evidence was for you
stating that the Hawthorne Officials requested Mr. Boswell to address the application.

Mr. Lieberman said the minutes from the Hawthorne Borough meeting dated December
20, 2006 reflects a portion of the minutes where Councilman Bertollo asked “what kind
of impact is expected from the development of the ravine in Wyckoff? Steve Boswell
responded that “he is reviewing the plans for this and will provide a report of his
findings”. It was at the next meeting on January 17, 2007 that there was nine minutes
of discussion (Mr. Lieberman was looking at one of his clients) where Mr. Boswell
provided some testimony about the potential impact of this project.

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked if Mr. Lieberman had the minutes from that
meeting.

Marked as identification at this time was the following client exhibit:
C-1 Copy of the 12/20/06 minutes from the Borough of Hawthorne council meeting

Mr. Lieberman said he does not have the minutes from the January 17, 2007 meeting.
Mr. Boswell was asked to opine as to what impact this development upstream might
have on Hawthorne.

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that the town of Hawthorne as a collective body
requested Boswell Engineering to opine on that?

Mr. Lieberman said he didn’t say that. Councilman Bertollo, who is a Hawthorne
elected official, made that request of Mr. Boswell on December 20, 2006. In response
to that request there was nine minutes of discussion at the next regularly scheduled
meeting.

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked if Mr. Lieberman had anything to evidence
that.

Mr. Lieberman told the Board to ask Mr. Boswell. He said he did not have any minutes

from the January 17, 2007 meeting. He said he could put a witness on right now
(looking towards Michael Brienza) to verify what happened at the Hawthorne meeting.

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said he is asking whether you have any
documentary evidence. He then asked what the authority of Mr. Lieberman’s letter is.

Mr. Lieberman said the standard cited in his letter indicates there may be a potential



0 K& 8T )&+

conflict of interest, it's imperative that it be disclosed, and that a licensee, Mr. Boswell,
act appropriately. He said he is putting Mr. Boswell on notice that there is an issue, that
Mr. Boswell should address it and resolve it since one councilman in Hawthorne is
concerned with this particular project.

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked Mr. Lieberman what his position is since his
letter states that this issue is relevant to Wyckoff.

Mr. Lieberman said there may be a potential conflict. Mr. Boswell knows all of the
information.

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that Mr. Boswell has stated his position in his
letter. The Planning Board will continue forward with this application.

Chairman Stanley said that Mr. Boswell has satisfied the Planning Board.

Mr. Lieberman also said that two new drawings have been presented with 2 cul-de-sacs
instead of one and two more units and he feels the applicant should have re-noticed for
this new application. He asked for a ruling from the Board on this issue.

Mr. Russell Huntington, the applicant’s attorney, advised the Board that the applicant
has not yet amended the application. The Planning Board asked the applicant to
supply some additional information. The conceptual maps will be marked as exhibits.

Chairman Stanley said the Board requested the applicant to show a conceptual plan
with an entrance from Red Rock Road at the last meeting.

Board Attorney Perconti said this is not an amended application. At the February 14,
2007 meeting the Board had requested conceptual plans to determine what the site
would look like if the entrance were off of Red Rock Road.

Mr. Lieberman said that he has a problem with moving forward tonight with this
application because there will be testimony with regards to this proposed conceptual
plan.

Board Attorney Perconti said the Board will hear testimony this evening as to the
conceptual. If the applicant decides that he is going to pursue one of these conceptual
plans then a new application or amended application will be filed and notice will be
provided. The right to be heard does not stop.

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said the applicant is moving forward tonight
because at the last meeting the applicant’s engineer was questioned why Red Rock
Road could not be utilized since it had been contemplated at the time Barrister Farms
was developed. The applicant is now before the Board and is going to present concept
plans. This is another way of addressing the Board’s questions.



K87 "8T ()&

Mr. Lieberman said that he is still objecting to going forward with this application tonight.
Mr. Huntington called his first witness.

Mr. Robert Milanese, 648 Wyckoff Avenue, Wyckoff was sworn. He stated that he is
president of Barrister Home Construction, Inc. He said that he has been constructing
homes in the area since 1980. He said that he developed Barrister Farms several
years ago. It was zoned multi-family affordable housing with 10 units per net
developable acre. At the time the Mason property was also zoned affordable housing
and he was in negotiation with the family to purchase this property. A stub in Red Rock
Road was left to connect to the Mason property in the future. At this time the Mason
property was land locked. Negotiations failed and the property was rezoned to RA-25
single family residential housing.  Since the meeting last month, he had asked his
engineer to draw up a conceptual plan of the proposed application connecting to Red
Rock Road. The original application has not been amended.

Mr. Huntington said that the Board had questioned an underground detention system
verses an open detention system. He asked the applicant if he has a preference
between underground verses above ground systems.

Mr. Milanese said that he purchased the property from the Mason family with the intent
to build nine homes which would have stately homes on larger lots for marketing
reasons. More homes could be built on this site. The underground detention system is
costly but more aesthetically appealing. The site can hold an above ground detention
system.

Mr. Huntington asked Mr. Milanese what his opinion is regarding the best layout of the
property for the community.

Mr. Milanese said the 9 lot plan is the best plan for this site. He does not like
connecting to Red Rock Road because he would be disturbing more steep slopes.
Also, crossing zones from an affordable housing zone, where 7500 square feet of lot
area is required to an RA-25 zone where a minimum of 25,000 square feet of lot area is
required is not desirable. He added that there was always a concern about the first lot
on the left when entering the site which is the closest to the ravine. He added more lot
area could be added to this proposed lot. If the application is modified this amended lot
line plan would be presented to the Board. He added that entering the site from
Grandview Avenue and servicing only nine homes is a more desirable plan. He said
that four trees, 2 of which are dead, will be removed in order to access the site.

Mr. Lieberman asked to cross examine Mr. Milanese.

Chairman Stanley said that the Board’s procedure is to cross examine at the end of all
the testimony when the application is open to the public.



K87 "8T ()&

Mr. Lieberman objected to this procedure.
Mr. Huntington called his next witness.

Mr. Andrew Missey, who was previously sworn and still under oath, continued with his
testimony regarding the application.

Mr. Huntington referred to the concept sketches. He asked if Mr. Missey had prepared
them.

Mr. Missey said he had prepared the sketches along with all of the other exhibits. All
lots are conforming as far as bulk requirements and are oversized in lot area. The
conceptual plan marked A-12 depicts the entrance to this site from Red Rock Road. All
lots meet the township’s standards. He explained that the above ground detention
system will function exactly like an underground detention system. The basin can be as
much as 3% feet deep and will need to be fenced to comply with safety and discharge
requirements that the DEP imposes on open detention basins.

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said the conceptual plan can have one cul-de-sac
and conform to the township’s design standards with regards to odd-shaped lots
located in Section 168-19(D) of the Township of Wyckoff Zoning Code.

Mr. Missey said that when connecting through Red Rock Road there is no way to avoid
an odd shaped lot since both sites have different lot area requirements since they are
different zones.

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that if approached from Red Rock Road a road
could be designed with fewer symmetrical lots on one cul-de-sac.

Mr. Missey said that the curve in the proposed road and the two different zones would
still create odd shaped lots.

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo asked Mr. Missey to describe the detention system
and the conservation area.

Mr. Missey said the detention system would be around 15’ in width and the depth can
vary to about 4’. Fencing would need to be placed around this area. In a storm event
about 372" of water would be contained in the system. The conservation area along the
ravine would not permit any disturbance and could not be built on.

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said there would be a permanent irrevocable
preservation of the ravine and areas surrounding it so it can never be destroyed. Single
family lots will be placed in the larger area adjacent to the Barrister Farms development.
He added that 26% of the total land mass will be protected. He asked who will maintain



K™ T$T( )&+
the conservation area?

Mr. Missey said it would be the responsibility of the individual homeowner to maintain
their portion of the ravine. The detention system would be maintained by the
Homeowners Association.

Chairman Stanley said that Barrister Farms homeowners along the ravine also own
their portion of the conservation easement as well as homes along Lafayette Avenue in
Wyckoff and into Hawthorne.

Vice Chairman Steinbruch asked how the filters would be maintained in an open basin
system.

Mr. Missey said the filters will be a cartridge style in the containment area. It would be
the same system as the underground detention system.

Mr. Peter Steck, 80 Maplewood Avenue, Maplewood, NJ was sworn. He said that he
has a bachelor degree in Civil Engineering, a Masters Degree in City and Regional
Planning from Rutgers University and have been licensed as a professional planner in
New Jersey since 1976.

The board accepted Mr. Steck’s credentials.

Mr. Steck said the applicant is requesting preliminary approval of a fairly regular shaped
property. There is extensive road frontage on Ravine Avenue and Grandview Avenue.
A notable feature is the ravine with a steep embankment with linear bands of a ridge
running though the property. The DEP requests that the property owner protect the
open waters. The applicant is proposing a nine lot subdivision with a cul-de-sac that is
aliened in a classic location which is opposite Fox Hollow Road on Grandview Avenue.
The proposed lots are the largest in the area. The Wyckoff Master Plan rezoned this
area as an RA-25 district in 1998. This lot was never considered in the Wyckoff Master
Plan as an open space for park or recreation area. The adjacent property known as
Barrister Farms was zoned MF/AH (Multi-Family Affordable Housing) and contains
affordable housing units as mandated by the State of New Jersey. Townships are now
faced with a third round rule now and this proposed site could become suitable for
affordable housing again. The Steep Slope Ordinance, outlined in Section 186-64(B) of
the Wyckoff Zoning Ordinance, states what can be disturbed and how you can disturb
it. Also, referenced is Section 168-19(D)2 & 6, Design Standards, defines placement of
lot lines and defines irregular or odd-shaped lots. There are several planning issues
such as the road placement, disturbance of steep slopes, and lot shape and
dimension. He added that the proposed roadway is furthest from the ravine and
crosses the linear ridge. An entrance from Red Rock Road would create additional
traffic and a safety hazard through Barrister Farm. A C-1 variance is being requested
for the disturbance of the thin band of steep slopes as proposed in the right of way
since the disturbance is minimal and remote from the ravine. Also, all proposed lots
meet the clearance standards and are oversized and conforming in this residential



He 8T )&+
zone. This subdivision preserves the ravine which is a public benefit.

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that the steep slope ordinance was adopted in
2004 because a number of lots in town contain sensitive land which appeared in need
of protection. In Section 186-63 (A) the ordinance was drafted to include language that
refers to lots, proposed roadway and common areas. The variance on the roadway is a
minimal intrusion on the roadway as far as disturbance in the slope area. What is the
percentage of steep slopes in relationship to the entire

square footage of the roadway?

Mr. Steck said that the percentage is under 20%.

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said that by definition the way the Township of
Wyckoff ordinance is structured there would always be 100% disturbance. He
reiterated as to what Mr. Steck said that aspects of the third round COAH regulations
have been struck down and a decision may result in a higher affordable housing
obligation to theTownship of Wyckoff.

Mr. Steck said he had performed a thorough analysis of the Wyckoff Master Plan. This
site had a history of being a Mt. Laurel site which would have produced affordable
housing units. It was removed from the township’s inventory for affordable housing.

Township Committeeman Fiorenzo said this site could have contained 99 units. The
Township of Wyckoff undertook efforts and had this site removed from the Mt. Laurel
inventory. Today, this site is zoned RA-25 and with 8 to 9 lots this application is more
consistent with the Wyckoff Master Plan. However, Round Three may insist that we
provide more affordable housing units and the township will be required to find
additional sites.

Chairman Stanley then stated the lateness of the hour and the need to adjourn this
meeting and continue the hearing at the April meeting.

Mr. Huntington requested continuance of the hearing at the next scheduled meeting
which is Wednesday, April 11, 2007 at 7:30 p.m.
Board Attorney Perconti said that at the next meeting, Mr. Huntington will conclude this

testimony. Mr. Lieberman should be prepared to cross examine.

There being no further business, a motion to adjourn the meeting was made and
seconded and passed unanimously. The meeting concluded at 11:05 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,



K87 "8T ()&

Susan Schilstra, Planning Board
Administrative Officer/Secretary



